bl

Brighton & Hove
City Council

Licensing Panel (Licensing Act 2003

Functions)
Date: 30 November 2020
Time: 10.00am
Venue Virtual

Members: Councillors:, Appich, O'Quinn and Simson

Contact: Lisa Johnson
Democratic Services Manager
01273 291228
lisa.johnson@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through
ModernGov: iOS/Windows/Android

This agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper


http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/modgov/9nblggh0c7s7#activetab=pivot:overviewtab
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB

AGENDA

PART ONE Page

31 TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS
32 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a
meeting, a substitute Member from the Licensing Committee may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the
matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(i) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer
or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the
public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.



33 ELECTRIC ARCADE LICENSING PANEL (LICENSING ACT 2003 7-44
FUNCTIONS)

Report of the Interim Executive Director Neighbourhoods, Communities &
Housing (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Corinne Hardcastle Tel: 0127329
Ward Affected: Queen's Park



The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made on
the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised
can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fourth working day before the meeting.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

Infra-red hearing aids are available for use during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the receptionist on arrival.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, (01273
291065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’'s website. At the
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. You
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy.

Therefore, by entering the meeting room and using the seats in the chamber you are deemed
to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members of the public
do not wish to have their image captured, they should sit in the public gallery area.

ACCESS NOTICE

The Public Gallery is situated on the first floor of the Town Hall and is limited in size but does
have 2 spaces designated for wheelchair users. The lift cannot be used in an emergency.
Evac Chairs are available for self-transfer and you are requested to inform Reception prior to
going up to the Public Gallery. For your own safety please do not go beyond the Ground
Floor if you are unable to use the stairs.

Please inform staff on Reception of this affects you so that you can be directed to the Council
Chamber where you can watch the meeting or if you need to take part in the proceedings e.g.
because you have submitted a public question.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff.
It is vital that you follow their instructions:

e You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;

e Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

e Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move

some distance away and await further instructions; and
e Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so.

Date of Publication - Friday, 20 November 2020



mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk







Licensing Panel Agenda Item 33
(Licensing Act 2003 Functions)  srighton & Hove City Counci

Subject: Application for a New Premises Licence under the

Licensing Act 2003

Premises: Electric Arcade

Daltons Bastion Downstairs
Madeira Drive

Brighton
BN2 1EN
Applicant: Otherplace Productions Ltd
Date of Meeting: 30 November 2020
Report of: Interim Executive Director Neighbourhoods,
Communities & Housing
Contact Officer: Name: Mark Savage-Brookes Tel: (01273) 292100
Email: mark.savage-brookes@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: Queen’s Park

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT

To determine an application for a New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act
2003 for Electric Arcade.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Panel determine an application for a New Premises Licence under the
Licensing Act 2003 for Electric Arcade.

CONTEXT/BACKGROUND INFORMATION & CONSULTATION

The application is for a New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.
The application proposes to create: “a tariff free arts networking space with a
responsible food and beverage offering that will complement the core function as
a small scale entrepreneurial arts centre. Comprising of two fringe style 50 seat
capacity performance and rehearsal spaces and a large cabaret bar style
performance space, box office, reception and gallery space”. A copy of the full
description provided by the applicant for the premises and operation is attached
at Appendix A.

Section 18 (operating schedule) of the application is detailed at Appendix B and
a plan of the premises is attached at Appendix C.



3.3  Summary table of proposed activities.

Licensable Activity Times
Plays Saturday — Thursday: 09:00 — 00:30
Friday: 12:00 — 00:30
Films Every Day: 09:00 — 00:30
Live music (e) Every Day: 09:00 - 00:30
Recorded Music (f) Every Day: 09:00 — 00:30
Performance of Dance (g) | Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
Anything of a similar Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
description within (e), (f)
or (9)
Supply of Alcohol Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
On the premises
Hours premises are open | Every Day 09:00 - 00:30
to public
Non-Standard timings For all the above times:
Every Day during the
Brighton Fringe period: Until 00:50

3.4  Cumulative Impact. The premises falls within the Cumulative Impact Area (“The
Area”) (see paragraphs 3.1 — 3.1.8).

Representations received

3.5 Details of the representations made are notified to applicants on receipt by the
Licensing Authority using a pro-forma. A summary appears below:

Four representations have been received in relation to the application — two of
these are in support of the application and two are made with concerns about
against the application.

Representations supporting the application were received from a local resident
and a local business, with relevant comments made regarding the Licensing
Objective for the Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

Representations made with concerns about the application were received from
Sussex Police and The Licensing Team on the grounds of the Licensing
Objectives for the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public
Nuisance.

Full details of the representations are attached at Appendix D.



3.6

3.7

11

1.2

1.3

A map showing the location of the premises is attached at Appendix E.
COMMENTARY ON THE LICENSING POLICY

The following extracts from Brighton & Hove City Council Statement of Licensing
Policy are considered relevant to this application and are numbered as they
appear in the policy:

Introduction

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and having regard to Guidance
issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the act. The licensing authority
is Brighton & Hove City Council. The purpose of this statement is to promote the
licensing objectives and set out a general approach to making licensing
decisions. The discretion of the licensing authority in relation to applications
under the act is only engaged if ‘relevant representations’ are made by other
persons or responsible authorities. This policy will inform the approach to be
taken when deciding applications and imposing conditions when relevant
representations are received. It is also intended as a guide for applicants as to
what to include in their operating schedules, always recognising that if no
representations are received, the application must be granted. The licensing
authority must carry out its functions with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives and this policy is framed around those objectives. Each application
will be given individual consideration on its merit. The scope of this policy covers
the following:

e Retail sales of alcohol;

e The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a
member of the club;

e The provision of regulated entertainment;
e The provision of late night refreshment.

The licensing objectives are: -

@) Prevention of crime and disorder;
(b) Public safety;

(c) Prevention of public nuisance;
(d) Protection of children from harm.

Scope

Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by
qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any conditions attached to various
authorisations will be focused on matters which are within the control of individual
licensees and others with relevant authorisations; i.e. the premises and its vicinity.
Each application will be given individual consideration on its merit. Nothing in this
policy shall undermine the right of any individual to apply under the terms of the act
for a variety of permissions and to have any such application considered on its
individual merits. Similarly, nothing in this policy shall override the right of any



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

person to make representations on an application or seek a review of a licence or
certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the act.

Special Policies and Initiatives
Cumulative impact

The licensing authority may receive representations from either a responsible
authority or other persons that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. This should not, however, be
confused with ‘need’ which relates more to the commercial demand for a particular
type of premises. The issue of ‘need’ is therefore a matter for the market to decide
and can, in some circumstances, be a matter for planning consideration; need
therefore does not form part of this licensing policy statement.

Special Policy - Cumulative Impact is defined as the potential impact upon the
promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises
concentrated in one area.

The licensing authority, after careful consideration, has determined that the
concentration of licensed premises in an area of the city centre is causing problems
of crime and disorder and public nuisance, and that therefore an approach to
‘Cumulative Impact’ is necessary as part of its statement of licensing policy. The
first Special Policy incorporating a Cumulative Impact Zone (ClZ) and Special
Stress Areas (SSA’s) were adopted in March 2008. Since that date, the licensing
authority has kept the CIZ and SSA’s under review. On 15 December 2011 Full
Council resolved to expand the ClZ and the special stress area, covering 1.5% of
the administrative area of Brighton & Hove City Council. On 20th November 2014
Licensing Committee resolved to confirm the current CIZ and SSA as defined in
the current Statement of Licensing Policy. On 29" November 2018 Licensing
Committee resolved to extend the current SSA to include areas in Central Hove.

This special policy will refer to a Cumulative Impact Zone (“the CIZ”) in the
Brighton city centre, a detailed plan of which is shown below.

10



Brighton & Hove City Council - Cumulative Impact Area

LT

0 250 500 1,000 Meters
| ] ] ] ] 1 1 ] |

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, 2011.

The Cumulative Impact Area comprises the area bounded by and including: the north
side of Western Road, Brighton from its intersection with the west side of Holland Road
to the junction with the west side of Dyke Road at its eastern end; from there, north-east
to the junction of the north side of Ayr Street with the west side of Queens Road and then
northward to the north-west corner of Surrey Street junction with Queens Road; thence
along the north side of Trafalgar Street eastwards to its junction with York Place and
continuing south-east across to Grand Parade, then south to the junction of Edward
Street; along the north side of Edward Street to the east side of its junction with Egremont
Place and southward along the eastern sides of Upper Rock Gardens and Rock Gardens;
southward to the mean water mark and following the mean water line westward to a point
due south of the west boundary of Holland Road; northward to that point and along the
west side of Holland Road to its northwest boundary and then diagonally across Western
Road to its intersection with the west side of Holland Road.

11



3.14

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.3

3.3.1

The special policy will only be overridden in exceptional circumstances. The effect
of this special policy is that applications for new premises licences or club premises
certificates within the area, or variations which are likely to add to the existing
Cumulative Impact, will be refused following relevant representations. This
presumption can be rebutted by the applicant if they can show that their application
will have no negative Cumulative Impact.

This special policy also applies to all new premises licences and club premises
certificates, for example pubs, restaurants and take-away establishments. Off
licences also come within this policy as they can contribute to problems of street
drinking, proxy purchasing, dispersal issues, preloading and excessive drinking
and related disorder.

The presumption of refusal does not relieve responsible authorities or other
persons of the need to make a relevant representation. If there are no
representations, the licensing authority must grant the application in terms
consistent with the operating schedule submitted.

Furthermore, this special policy is not absolute. Upon receipt of a relevant
representation, the licensing authority will always consider the circumstances of
each case and whether there are exceptional circumstances to justify departing
from its special policy in the light of the individual circumstances of the case. If an
application is unlikely to add to the cumulative impact of the area, it may be
granted. The impact can be expected to be different for premises with different
styles and characteristics. For example, while a large nightclub or high capacity
public house might add to problems of cumulative impact, a small restaurant,
theatre or live music venue (where alcohol is not the primary activity) may be
considered exceptional circumstances. The fact that a premises will belis
exceptionally well managed with a well-qualified applicant, or that there are no
residential premises nearby, will not be considered exceptional.

If the licensing authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still
need to show that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of
one of the licensing objectives and that conditions would be ineffective in
preventing the problems involved.

The Matrix Approach
The Licensing Authority will support:

Diversity of premises: ensures that there is a mix of the different types of licensed
premises and attracts a more diverse range of customers from different age
groups, different communities and with different attitudes to alcohol consumption.
It gives potential for positively changing the ambience of the city or an area of it.
This will have a positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime and in increasing
the number of evening visitors to the city centre. The Community Safety Strategy
recognises that too many single uses in a confined area and patrons turning out
onto the streets at the same time may create opportunities for violent crime and
public disorder and therefore supports mixed use venues encouraging a wider age
balance.

12



3.3.2 A “matrix” approach to licensing decisions has been adopted and is set out below.
It provides a framework of what the licensing authority would like to see within its
area and gives an indication of the likelihood of success or otherwise to investor
and businesses making applications.

Matrix approach for licensing decisions in a Statement of Licensing Policy (times relates
to licensable activities)

Cumulative | Special Marina
ImpaCt Area | Stress Area Other Areas
Restaurant | Yes Yes Yes Yes
(midnight) (midnight) (midnight)
Café Yes (10pm) | Yes Yes Yes
(midnight) (midnight)

Late Night | No Yes Yes Yes

Takeaways (midnight) (midnight)

Night Club | No No Yes No

Pub No Yes (11pm) | Yes Yes
(midnight)

Non- Yes Yes Yes Yes

alcohol (favourable) | (favourable) (favourable)

lead (e.g.

Theatre)

Off-licence | No No Yes Yes ( Up to
11pm butif in
densely
residential
area may be
earlier — see
note 7 below)

Members Yes (<100 | Yes (<100 | Yes Yes

Club (club | capacity) capacity)

premises (11pm) (11pm)

certificate)

Notes on matrix

Subject to the following notes, the policy, as represented in the matrix, will be strictly
adhered to

1) Each application will be considered on individual merit

2) Applications within the CIZ are subject to the special policy on cumulative impact
at para 3.1, and those within the special stress area to the special stress policy
considerations at para 3.2.

3) Departure from the matrix policy is expected only in exceptional circumstances

13



4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

Exceptional circumstances will not include quality of management or size of venue
except where explicitly stated in policy matrix.

Exceptional circumstances may include: consultation with and meeting
requirements of responsible authorities, an appropriate corporate social
responsibility policy, community contribution to off set impact (such as financial
contribution to infrastructure), community support, alcohol sale ancillary to
business activity (demonstrable to responsible authorities and licensing authority,
for instance by licence condition allowing authorised officers access to sales
accounts).

The following licensing activities are encouraged and valued by the licensing
authority: outdoor regulated entertainment, community based street parties,
member’s clubs, traditional pubs outside the city centre and non-alcohol led
licensable activities, particularly within city centre.

Other Areas; consideration will be given to the nature of the area and location in
relation to any application. In a residential area for example the concerns of local
residents will be relevant when considering applications for off-licences, pubs or
cafés, especially if there is evidence of anti-social behaviour, street drinking or
underage drinking. Earlier closing times may be appropriate. Regard will be had to
the Public Health Framework for assessing alcohol licensing and the Street
Community and Drug Activity Profile. These documents are available on the
following page of our website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/licensingact.

In an area where there are already several existing off-licences and where
representations are received about negative cumulative impact on the licensing
objectives of a further premises, the application may be refused on these grounds.
Outdoor events will be supported where arranged through the council’'s event
planning process. Generally, regulated entertainment in the open air including
tents and marquees should have a maximum closure hour of 2300. Earlier hours
may be imposed in sensitive open spaces or near residential areas. The Licensing
Authority will have regard to Noise Council guidance.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
prevention of crime and disorder which may be associated with licensed
premises and certificated club premises. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates will, as far as possible, reflect local crime reduction strategies.

The licensing authority acknowledges that training and good management play a
key part in preventing alcohol and drug related crime. The authority expects that
all licensees of on-licensed premises attend training programmes which will raise
their awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed premises,
and that suitable training be extended to all bar staff and door supervisors so that
drug dealers and users will be deterred from using licensed premises for illegal
purposes and that incidents of violence in licensed premises will be reduced.
Licensees are also encouraged to attend training programmes to help identify
children at risk and issues of basic child protection. It is the duty of the
designated premises supervisor (DPS) to train staff on induction concerning
conditions on their premises licence.

It is expected that the DPS will spend a significant amount of time on the
premises. When not on the premises it will be essential that the DPS is

14



4.1.4

4.1.5

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

contactable, particularly should problems arise with the premises and that staff
are authorised by the DPS.

The location of violent attacks, anti-social behaviour and hate crime or related
incidents may be used to justify closing times.

Measures put in place should support the intentions of Operation Marble (police
operational order), which aims to prevent incidents of crime and disorder within
the night time economy, at weekends. Operation Marble operates with a view to
minimising the risk to the public of being a victim of public place violent crime; to
reduce incidents of violent crime and public disorder within the city centre; to deal
positively with offences and offenders; to secure and preserve evidence which
will assist in the prosecution of offenders and to support the night time economy
and the responsibly run businesses within it.

Sussex Police

The Police have experienced a shift in peak times during the policing of the night
time economy with an increasing demand for resources further into the early
hours of the morning. This may be indicative of individuals coming out later into
the night time economy due to changes in disposable income. This is coupled
with the increases in ‘pre-loading,” when individuals coming into the night time
economy have already consumed alcohol purchased at home. There has also
been a noticeable increase in licensing activity mid-week. This has been partly
due to the large student population taking advantage of a more affordable week
night economy. Likewise, licensed venues have encouraged a wider customer
base by hosting regular themed nights and offering discounted alcohol and entry.
These trends provide obvious challenges to both the licensed on-trade and the
police when assessing and responding to levels of drunkenness.

Dispersal from the city centre during the late evening and early morning
continues to provide policing challenges. Over recent years, there has been a
proliferation of off-licences and late night refreshment venues along the city’s
arterial routes. This has led to incident ‘hot spots’ where patrons from the night
time economy continue to interact, albeit away from any safety measures
afforded by on-licences. As such, Sussex Police support the Council’s Special
Policy in offering guidance to both applicants and the Licensing Committee in
relation to off-licences and late night refreshment licences.

Sussex Police have a growing concern that, despite staff training in age-
restricted sales, under age individuals are still being served alcohol in some of
the city’s licensed premises. As such, regular intelligence-led ‘test-purchase’
operations are conducted. Between December 2013 and July 2014, 21 off-
licences and 13 on- 23 licences were tested. 38% of the off-licences failed in
contrast with a 85% failure rate with the on-licences; indicating a considerable
risk in this area of the trade. It is anticipated that initiatives, including the
introduction of identification scanning machines at premises throughout the city,
will go some way to mitigate this risk. Sussex Police also continue to work
alongside the Business Crime Reduction Partnership to tackle the problem of
those who use false identification to enter licensed premises and purchase
alcohol.

15



4.2.4

4.2.5

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

Brighton & Hove Police are working closely with venues and other organisations
within the city to protect vulnerable people from becoming victims of crime. This
includes such measures as offering vulnerability training and supporting
initiatives such as mobile teams of volunteers actively checking people’s well-
being.

Policing the night time economy continues to provide a challenge and in the
climate of limited resources and newly emerging problems, Sussex Police
support maintaining the council’s Special Policy which defines cumulative impact
and special stress. Sussex Police also recognise and support businesses which
are aware of their social responsibilities and as such, actively contribute towards
keeping Brighton & Hove a safe and enjoyable city

Care, control and supervision of premises

The Licensing authority supports the Business Crime Reduction Partnership and
other approved schemes. Where appropriate, premises licence holders should be
members of the BCRP for the deterrence to violent crime that such membership
provides. The BCRP NightSafe radio scheme is normally expected as an
operational requirement for city centre bars, clubs and pubs and is an example of
good practice in achieving the aim of reducing crime and disorder and improving
public safety. Well managed pub-watch schemes provide information exchange
between the premises licence holders and responsible authorities that reduce and
deter violent crime and disorder. The council will support a responsible licensing
scheme.

The effective management and supervision of a venue is a key factor in reducing
crime and disorder, both within it and outside. The police will consider the
applicants, objecting to the application where appropriate. The police may suggest
crime prevention measures in relation to, for example, the internal layout of the
premises, closed-circuit television, help points, lighting and security staff. The
police may ask for conditions which support such measures to be imposed when
licensing applications are granted, eg type of licence, capacity, operating hours’
restrictions.

Following the grant of a licence, the management and supervision of the premises,
in so far as it might impact on crime and disorder, will continue to be monitored.
Particular attention will be paid to any licensed premises where there is evidence
of criminal activity or any association with racist or homophobic crime. The
licensing authority will keep itself well briefed on the nature, location and type of
premises where alcohol related violence and disorder are occurring so it can take
full account of the facts and avoid exacerbating problems as required by the
Community Safety Strategy. Where licensed premises are found to cause
nuisance or be associated with disorder or unreasonable disturbance, the review
process may be invoked, and powers of revocation or the imposition of conditions
may be considered. Conditions may include use of closed-circuit television,
licensed door supervisors and earlier closing times. Such action to restrict the
operation may be taken for trial periods to allow businesses an opportunity to
remedy existing disorder, nuisance or disturbance.

This policy recognises the use of registered Door Supervisors All Door Supervisors
will be licensed by the Security Industries Authority. Mobile security units and

16



4.3.5

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.3

6.1.5

6.1.6

similar systems are in use by some premises operators as a means of providing
security cover at very short notice at premises which may not normally require a
permanent security presence. The Licensing Strategy Group has sought to define
the standards and operating guidance for such mobile units, which will be in need
of regular review. This policy endorses the use of units following such guidance
and standards in appropriate circumstances. A copy can be found on the licensing
pages of the council’s website.

The development of codes of practice and general operating standards for security
companies is encouraged for local businesses; premises operators are urged to
ensure that security services, when engaged, are provided by suitably qualified
businesses operating to recognised standards and who should be working towards
SIA accreditation.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
prevention of public nuisance which may be associated with licensed premises
and certificated club premises.

In determining applications for new and varied licences, regard will be had to the
location of premises, the type and construction of the building and the likelihood
of nuisance and disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of
noise from within the premises, as a result of people entering or leaving the
premises or from individuals or groups of customers gathered outside (e.g. in
order to smoke).

Installation of sound limiting equipment and sound insulation may be required to
minimise disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise from
the licensed premises.

In determining applications for new licences or extensions in hours or terminal
hours of licensed premises, regard will be had to late night public transport
availability and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers.

Reasonable controls are available to all premises operators to minimise the
impact of noise from customers outside. The council’s Environmental Health
Department has issued guidance on a number of steps that can be taken in this
respect which are endorsed by this policy (see 6.2 below).

6.2 Smoking Advice

6.2.1

Premises licence holders will be expected to:

e Develop a management plan on how to manage smoking on your
premises and ensure that all staff are aware of the contents of this plan,
and that it is effectively implemented. Noise from people smoking and
talking can be intermittent, vary in character and volume and be

17



intrusive. An effective smoking management plan will help prevent
neighbours being disturbed.

Comply with any planning conditions restricting the use of outdoor areas.

Ensure that any structures used by smokers comply with the design
criteria detailed in the Heath Act 2006 and that any structures, awnings,
retractable canopies, etc. have the relevant planning permission.

Ensure any new lighting to outdoor areas must be designed so as not to
cause a light nuisance to neighbours and again have the relevant
planning permission and building control consent.

Ensure that the conditions on the premises licence are complied with.
There may be conditions restricting the hours of use of gardens and
outdoor areas. Having reviewed the contents of the premises licence
you may find it necessary to request a variation of your licence.

Licence tables and chairs on the Public Highway under the provisions of
the Highways Act 1980. These licences may have conditions restricting
the times that the area can be used.

Ensure drinks, glasses and bottles are not taken onto the highway
unless there is a tables and chairs licence permitting use. A system
should be adopted to prevent theft and ‘spiking’ of drinks and reminding
customers not to leave unattended items.

Discourage smokers remaining in gardens and outdoor areas and
determine terminal hours.

Discourage smokers remaining outside by removing/disabling tables
and chairs or prohibiting their use after a certain time. Lights and
heaters will also be turned off.

Introduce a system that after a certain time the number of smokers
outside are restricted to a maximum number. Staff will be needed to
manage this restriction.

Employ staff and/or SIA registered door supervisors to manage doors
and control customers and smokers entering and leaving the premises.
Staff positioned on the doors can help to encourage customers not to
cause a noise problem. It may be that staff are required to manage
doors after a certain time, particularly during the hours when
neighbouring residents are trying to sleep.

Ensure door supervisors maintain order outside venues and protect
customer safety. BCRP supports the use of Night Safe. Radio net and
other pager systems and pub watch schemes can be used to provide for
rapid police response and alert other venues where customers and staff
are endangered.

Position signs to remind customers that the premises is in an area where
people live. Itis not always obvious in busy commercial streets with flats

18



above. By changing the design and wording of signs customers do not
forget. Signs can be located in and outside the premises and on tables.

e Use CCTV to manage outside areas.

6.2.2 Licensed premises should normally display prominent, legible signs at exits

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

reminding customers to leave in a quiet, peaceful, orderly manner.

Integration of Strategies

The licensing authority shall secure the proper integration of this policy with local
crime prevention, planning policy, transport, tourism and cultural strategies by: -

e Liaising and consulting with the Sussex Police, Community Safety
Forum, Sustainability Commission representatives and following the
guidance in community safety and crime and disorder strategy

e Liaising and consulting with Public and Alcohol Programme Board
e Liaising and consulting with the East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service

e Liaising and consulting with the Local Strategic Partnership, Safety
Advisory Group (Emergency Planning) and Equalities and Social Justice
Consultation Forum

e Liaising and consulting with the Planning authority
e Liaising and consulting with the Highways authority

e Liaising and consulting with local business and business associations.
Having regard to any future documents issued relating to the Private
Security Industry Act 2001, for example liaison or information sharing
protocols

e Liaising and consulting with the Trading Standards Team, for example
with regard to test purchasing codes of practice

In line with statutory requirements and the Council’s Inclusion Policy, the Licensing
Authority shall have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, and
to promote equality of opportunity and positive relations between persons of diverse
backgrounds, for example communities of interest such as: lesbian, gay, bisexual
and transgender people; disabled people; racial and ethnic groups; religious and
faith groups.

This policy supports the aims of the tourism strategy, recognising the benefits for
the tourism economy of creating a safer and more attractive city centre and
improving competitiveness with other European cities. The Licensing Committee
should receive any reports relevant to the needs of the local tourist economy and
the cultural strategy for the area to ensure that it considers these matters.

The Licensing Committee should receive relevant information relating to the
employment situation of the area and the need for new investment and employment
where appropriate.

Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect local crime
prevention strategies. Such conditions may include the use of closed circuit
television cameras, use of the NightSafe radio system or accredited scheme, the
provision and use of shatterproof drinking receptacles, drugs and weapons search

19



8.6

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

5.1

5.2

policy, the use of registered door supervisors, specialised lighting requirements,
hours of opening. Certificates issued to club premises shall reflect local crime
prevention strategies and may include any or all of the requirements listed above.

The licensing authority will have regard to the need to disperse people quickly and
safely from the city centre to avoid concentrations which may produce disorder
and disturbance.

Live Music, Dancing & Theatre

This policy recognises the need to encourage live music, dancing and theatre for
the wider cultural benefits of the community generally. In addressing such
issues, the potential for limited disturbance in neighbourhoods will always be
carefully balanced with these wider benefits, particularly for children. The impact
of licensing on regulated entertainment, particularly live music and dancing, will
be monitored. Where indications are that such events are being deterred by
licensing requirements, the policy will be revisited with a view to investigating
how such situations might be reversed.

The Licensing Committee represents the general interests of a community in
determining what conditions should be attached to licences and certificates as a
matter of necessity for the promotion of the licensing objectives. All members of
the Licensing Committee will be trained on Licensing Act 2003 and S182
Guidance. The Licensing authority is aware of the need to avoid measures
which deter live music, dancing and theatre - such as imposing indirect costs out
of proportion to the income of the licence holder and to the risks presented. Only
appropriate, proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions should impose
any restrictions on such events.

The licensing committee will support the cultural zones, outdoor eating areas,
food led operations, community pubs, live entertainment and protect living
conditions in mixed use areas.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The Licensing Act 2003 provides for fees to be payable to the licensing authority
in respect of the discharge of their functions. The fee levels are set centrally at a
level to allow licensing authorities to fully recover the costs of administration,
inspection and enforcement of the regime.

Finance Officer Consulted Michael Bentley Date: 12/11/20

Legal Implications:

The licensing authority must act to promote the four licensing objectives which
are:

The prevention of crime and disorder

Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance

20



The protection of children from harm
The licensing authority must have regard to its statement of licensing policy and
the guidance issued by the Secretary of State in carrying out its functions.

Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 16/11/20

Equalities Implications:

5.3 Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity.
Licensing policy aims to protect children from harm including sale and supply of
alcohol to children.

Sustainability Implications:

5.4  Licensing policy aims to prevent public nuisance and develop culture of live
music, dancing and theatre.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Appendix A — Full description of premises and operation

2. Appendix B — Section 18 (operating schedule) of the Application

3. Appendix C — Plan of Premises Representations

4, Appendix D — Representations

5. Appendix E — Map of area

Background Documents

Brighton & Hove City Council, Licensing Act 2003: Statement of Licensing Policy 2016,
revised January 2019.

Home Office, Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
April 2018.

Public Health Framework for assessing Alcohol Licensing. Annual Report — Ward. 5th
edition. Public Health Intelligence. January 2019

Brighton & Hove City Council, Licensing Act 2003: Statement of Licensing Policy 2016,
revised January 2019.

21



22



APPENDIX A

Electric Arcade — application reference 2020/03210/LAPREN

Full description of the premises and operation, as provided in application:

The premises is situated in a previously unused space at beach level to the East of the Palace
Pier.

This location has, in the past, been associated with severe problems with anti-social
behaviour, street drinking and drug use. This is particularly true outside of the peak season
when the surrounding businesses become fallow for the winter.

Given this sensitive location, both in terms of its historical social impact, and proximity to
the sea, the applicant will be making special provision to ensure the diversity of its audience
and the safety of their customers when departing the venue. Details of these will be outlined
later in this application and in the wider operational documents for the premises.

Sitting within the CIZ the applicants are aware that there are strict exceptional
circumstances that should be addressed in order to satisfy the current licencing policy for
the City.

Electric Arcade will endeavour to create a tariff-free arts networking space with a
responsible food and beverage offering that will complement the core function as a small-
scale entrepreneurial arts centre. Comprising of two fringe style 50 seat capacity
performance and rehearsal spaces and a large cabaret bar style performance space, box
office, reception and gallery space, the premises is uniquely designed to target section 3.3.1
of the Brighton and Hove City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016. “3.3.1 Diversity
of premises: ensures that there is a mix of the different types of licensed premises and
attracts a more diverse range of customers from different age groups, different communities
and with different attitudes to alcohol consumption.”

The premises is also designed to complement and integrate with the existing cultural
offering of the city, being managed and delivered by the team behind the highly successful
Warren Festival, which forms an integral part of the City’s annual Fringe festival. During this
period the spaces will be dedicated to small scale fringe theatre delivering a cost-effective
space for the development and display of new and emerging cultural content from the city.
By establishing a year-round location for the development of this work the Electric Arcade
will be ideally placed to support the wider freelance arts community that forms an
important part of the Brighton cultural landscape.

In addition to the above, the project aims to extend the participation in the arts by appealing
to young families through a series of workshops and performances specifically targeted at
the summer holidays, drawing young families into the cultural ecosystem of the city. As an
example of the programme of events and its diversity of audience the weekend programme
will consist of a Saturday or Sunday matinee performance, tea-time variety entertainment
(ie. a family show) and then two evening shows.

23



Example Weekend programme

I0am - Childrens Workshop

Ipm — Occasional lunchtime theatre (series of one-offs)
3pm - Matinee of the theatre show which is already on a run
5pm - Family show

7pm - Comedy preview

8pm — Theatre show

8.30pm - Comedy preview

10/10.30pm - Cabaret

During 2020 the premises has operated under a temporary licence and in what can only be
described as a severely difficult operating environment. During this period local businesses
have noted a marked improvement in the area. Due to the increased and diversified nature
of the pedestrian traffic in the area the local operators have reported an anecdotal
reduction in antisocial behaviour and specifically drug use in the area. In addition to this the
increase security presence in the area has generated a number of welfare calls to the
seafront services to alert lifeguards to members of the public in potential risk of danger in
relation to the sea. Overall the use of the premises has demonstrated itself to be of benefit
to the local area and a clear positive impact as part of the CIZ.

An integral part of the revenue stream to support the clear cultural and social benefits of a
premises of this type is the sale of alcohol. While it will always be positioned as a
supplementary activity to the theatrical and cultural pursuits it does allow the premises to
offer affordable space for the small scale freelance cultural ecosystem of the city. As the
venue sits within the CIZ the applicant will deploy soft and hard measures to ensure the
activity in the premises remains the nett benefit to the CIZ outlined above. Strict entry
conditions will be maintained at all times and a stringent policy to prevent entry and sales to
persons showing intoxication. The style of the bar will encourage seated drinking and
volume levels in the cabaret bar area, outside of performance times, will be maintained to a
conversational level at all times. This will develop and encourage a “Café Culture”
environment and will always stand in contrast to the nightclub style premises in the local
area.

Regarding Plays:

We will be putting on Fringe-style shows (which are generally, but not exclusively, one hour
in length), consisting of Theatre, Musicals, Comedy, Cabaret, Spoken Word, Family Shows
plus Workshops and activities. These will take place between the hours stated on each day
(but not continuously), with at least 25 to 45 minutes break between different
performances, though this will vary. Sound and lighting will be provided through a PA system
controlled by a mixing desk, under the supervision of a competent engineer.

Regarding Films:
We may be playing background clips between performances to promote shows that are
taking place in the venues, and there will be use of projection during live performance.

There will be the showing of feature films or film shorts in one or more of the performance
spaces ,either after the live performance has finished, or as part of the programme.

24



These activities will take place between the hours stated on each day (but not continuously).
Sound and projection will be provided through a PA system controlled by a mixing desk,
under the supervision of a competent engineer.

Regarding Live Music:

We will be putting on some music shows as part of our Fringe programme, and there is the
remote possibility of some 'Great Escape' events taking place, though we currently have no
plans for any.

Music will be amplified, but controlled by the main mixing desk, operated by a competent
engineer, ensuring full control over sound levels. There may also be some acoustic music
sets happening.

Shows will take place between the hours stated on each day (but not continuously), with
approximately 25 to 45 minutes break between different performances, though this will vary
across the period. As with previous years, it is anticipated that music will play a very small
part of our overall programme, and any such shows will be encouraged towards early
evening slots to minimise their impact.

Regarding Recorded Music:

Background music will be used during performances as well as entrance and exit music for
audiences attending performances. We will play background music for the bar areas,
subject to rigorous noise-level assessment. Music will also most likely be used intermittently
as part of live performances. All sound will be through a PA, controlled by the main mixing
desk, ensuring full control over sound levels, monitored by a competent engineer.

Regarding Performances of Dance:

There there will be specific dance performances programmed, and in addition there will be
dance used as part of other performances that come under other genres, such as theatre,
cabaret and musicals.

These activities will take place between the hours stated on each day (but not continuously)
- these are the outlying hours, activity is not scheduled to take place all day between these
hours. Sound, lighting and projection will be provided through a PA system controlled by a
mixing desk, under the supervision of a competent engineer.

Regarding Anything similar to Live Music, Recorded Music and Performances of
Dance:

There will be Cabaret shows, that may feature any of dancing, music, film and performance
within the shows, taking place, and also cabaret style acts as part of comedy and theatre
shows. We may also hold a Silent Disco type event, where DJ's will play music broadcast to
radio headphones worn by audience members. These activities will take place between the
hours stated on each day (but not continuously) - these are the outlying hours, activity is
not scheduled to take place all day between these hours. Sound and projection will be
provided through a PA system controlled by a mixing desk, under the supervision of a
competent engineer.

25



26



APPENDIX B

Brighton and Howa Farhelg comtac
Application for s pramisas llcamoe shisafetvsbrigiion -hove givuk
Eirighton & Huwe | Licensing At 2003 Tekaphone: 01273 204425
ity Comngll
|
* pequired | nfzrnuiian
Ssction 18 of 21

LICEMSING DBJECTIVES
Describe the stepsyou inb=nd to take o promote the four licersing objectiees

a) erveral - all four licensing obje otfees (bu,d.e)
List hiere steps you wil take to promiote all four licersing objectives together.

Thenature of the premises, and the mbended wee, is sudh that itwill be a bensfit to the area. Increased footfall year-nund in
a traditiorely s=xconal space offers clear berefits to public safety in an often-quiet port of the seafront. |n addition to this
the arscdotal evidenos of & reduction of drug use, public urination and anti-social behaeiour reported during the
ternporary licence period demnorstrate that increassd footfall of a diverse sudiznos delivers a marked reduction in gereral
arimee and disorder for the mmediate o ole

Actiwitiesin the space are spedfically designed to inoesse and encourage a diverse crowd in tems of age; mos and gender:
The premizes will become a hub for the espanding and crudal freslance arts sector. Bars, 25 part of small-scale arts cerrines,
typically gerembe far feser public order issues than aloohol led licerssd premises & the consumption of non-al ooholic
drinks and a mixed crowd, along with the artistic content being the oore actisity, raditionally supress lange group drinking
mutture, Im addition to this the scale and size of the premises will necessitabe srmall table sizes that will further discourage
lange groups of drinkers. Mon-alcoholc drinks will be gieen equal bilirg on drinks merus and the verue will alss ercounge
sriick purchases with drirks to enoourage a less sloshol fooussed experisrce,

The diwision of the space irto three spedfic pedformance or eshibition speces allows the applicant to stagger end tirmes for
diff ererit activities. This process is a key rmitigator for the main nisk of public nuisance st dosure at the end of the day.
Sigraage within the wenue will remind customers o be responsible on departure and seounty saffeill ahvays be deployed
from 18:00 howrs on weshends to direct custormners awary from the immediabe areas All door staff weill b= trained in
ideritifping persons at risk and regular chedes of the immedizbe waberfront will be induded in work schedules for all saff.
5l door staff will also be deployed whene ticket sales in advance suggest a larger athendance of specific crowd profiles in
line with dynamic sk ssess et proce dunes,

In addition to the abowe messures the applcant cormmits to resst sl areas of best practce identified in paragraph 3.54 of
the Stabernent of Licensing Palicy 2016 as folows:

= The installation of a digital CCTV s ystern by Baison with, and to s standand approwed by Sussec Police

= (halenge 26 policy

= Pefusals sysbem

= Diocurnented staff traiming including undemge sle, dnnkenness and procy sales

= Wountary restriction of high strength alcohiol - o perating s deedules mery be used to limit high AR beers and dders

= BCRP membership (or other acoedited sdheme)

= Mo sale of single cars

= Displays showld not be kocated st the ertranos’exit points or near checks out

A detailed operating schedule cutining the measuress and methods used to achisws the aboee best practics is awailabls on
dernand for stabutory authonties.

Mz & multi-generatioral venwe, protection of children from barm will be of fundamentasl mporanos to te ongansstion and
oone bo all operating proosdures. The applicant will ensure that there are staff with specfic resporsbility for probection of
chiildren ard wulnerable persons on shift during al opening bours and sdditioral training will be green to all staffin relation
o underage sales ard prosy sales. A strictchallenge 25 policy will be in place stall Gmes and sge resticions will be
inchaded during certain labe opening howrs. Age suitability for al perforrances will be clearly displayed on sl adwertising

27



Coutinwed from previoos prga...
|rratenals and onlire mles poirts.

ki The presertion of aime and disorder

|On Fridays ard Saturdays plus the days immediately before a Bank Holiday, therewill b= a minimurm of one 514 door
supersisor operating at the premises from 1E00 untd clese.

At all times the premises is apen to the public, the management will coriract the beck-up s=rdi oes of an approsed mobil=
sipppeort unit (MSU) 24 howrs & darg, with a minirmam of 2 514 registered Door Supersisors opemating from it

504 licersed door supersisors or additional 34 licensed door supersisors shall be employed on ary other oocasions when a
requirement is identified by the liceres holder's writben risk ass=ssment for eample when ae music events are taking
place) or requeste d by SussexPolice in writimg ot k=2t 48 hours in adwance. A copy of thewntten risk assessrent will be
rreade available to Sussex Police Licensing on request, and Sussex Police corsutted on any amendments to the nzk
EEsEssmeEnk.

O weskends 51A door supersisors will search bags and use their padgmen tand discretonto seanch customers suspected of
concealing alcohol, drugs orwespores. Searching will be in accordance with the Sscurity S=arch Policy.

#n inddent log will be maintamed by the premises showing a detaled note of inciderts that oocur in the premises. The
incident log wil be inspected and sigreed off by the DPS (or & person with dele gated suthority) at ket once & week The
loagbyioncke sheall be= ket om the premiges and be arsailsble for irspection at all tires the premises are open by suthorissd

officers of the Licersing Suthonty or the police. An ircident will be defined &= being ore which invol'ves an allegation of a
aimiral offence.

Anyrefisak made atthe ber e.q. for inbocication, age dhedis or any other resson will also ke recorded in writing and bogs
‘wil b= awailable for mspection at all times.

‘Where akoohol i to e supplied to the public 25 an integrabed element of an event, delireated areas with physical
bourdanes wil b= constnucted. All such aloobol is to be consume dwithin the overall sits, induding petio ansa.

A rinirmurm of hal howr drinking up time & allowed by the lcence where alcobol is supplied, even if an event closes eady,
uriless in an erergency sibustion

‘W'e will perticipabe in any approsed schemes aimed at tascking/preserting crime and disorder; gudh as the BCRP Might Safe
radio scheme

M ppraved CCTV systerrs will be irstalledin and arournd the venue for the purposes of the presention of crimeand disorder
and security.

The premizes will store ard maintain a list of any kost ard found property.

Staff will requilarly patnol and monitor all arsss of the wenue and surrcurding public arsss to =nsure safety and appropriste
besbeviour. Inappropriste or intoscabed behaviour within the licenoe boundsry wil result in ejecton of the oonosmed

parties. Ary such behavour within thew wicinity of the venue will be moritored and, at the discretion of staffor in line with
any spedfic sgresd procsdures, reported to the appropiate authonbes.

Polycarbonate drinking wesseds/oontairers will be in use where rick assessment deems it rescessary.

) Pubslic safety

The applcant will arganis= and docurment frequent communications with BEHCC Ersino mental Health & Licensing
section, the S=afront office, and the Emengenicy Sersices. This will give an effecties fonam in which operational esues can be
dizcuszad ared charges to the operating schedule of the premises can be consulted on. This process will also allow the
applicant ard their DPS to be marane of specific arnd changing challenges within the CIE and respord asccordingly.

28




Continwad from ,n.rm'um pugl

I:drhng re-p-n-rl: .} pr-:rbcbbd -:I-:-Fi-:-:fq'rmt :=-:h-=d.|l= '|ll|| I:-e -:ln-el-:-p-bd in :ud1 numl:-:n: un-:| at :u-:h tirvess &5 -:|-=e1'n-=d
nevessang and in corsulbation with Sussex Police as required. Ongoing discissiors with SussexPolice licensing will identify
opperturitiss to enhancs the protection of the surrounding area and seafrontin the wicinity of the premises aswel as the
Eafety of customers within the licenced bourdary of the premises.

Mo patrons ane to be admitted mbo the wenue if in poszsession of alcohel and ary patron showing signs of excess
nto sication will be depied access.

Flo sale of slcobol to intoxicated patrors will be permitted amd reject on logs will be kept. Challenge 28 will b= in operation
all times, even when age chedks are carned out at eriry to the venue, Bar staffwil be briefed and traired sccordingly.
is training will be regularly reviewsd, and a training bog rmeirtmined onsibe.

= will reqularly update staff training in respect of licensing legislation, polices and procedures to ensureal staff are up to
pdate im thess aneas.

Fihen on duty at peak tirres, Secunty SlA-liceresd staffat the erran ce wil use their judgerrent and disaetion to s=anch
ustarrers suspected of concealing alcohol, drugs or wespons. lbems of concem include botes of spints, wine snd strong
pemers; arvd drugs and weapons of any kind. Seanchineg will be in acoondanoe with the Seourity Search Policy.

[ymamic risk azseszment may lead to random searching at an appropriate mtio which may also be usefully mplemented 2=
| preventative measure, At tires, in sddition to the sforemertioned dyramic nisk assessment, we may implement strict'alk-
bag' searches on patrons entenrg the te.

it other tirres, our Fromt of House stewarding team, alongside bar staff will constanty assess patrore for risk, and use our
reernbership of BCRP, Pubwatch or similarto sither receive alerts, or pess them on, of troublesome individuals, ard whiers
nsces sary arrarge S1A assistance, incressed 5L staffing cowerage or BB support.

Our in-houss staff will work closely with our Secunty patners to monitor and look out for pastrons lessing in the direction of
khe seafront, usireg established practices to mairtain public sfety. Beporting procsdures of sulnerable or at-risk persons wil
bee estabilished with the professional lfsguarding teams and regular cortact will be rrmde to enbancs and tanget =ffective
procedures to ersure the safety of patrore and other members. of the public within obsereaton of the wenues staff.

d] The prevemtion of public raissnos

The key drallerges for the premises for public nuisances are arourd noise snd dispersal. All performances within the wenue
ail b= constantly moniboned for nioise amdwil be rairtsined within sgresd limits with Ervironmental bealth and suitable
fr thee location of the premises. All noiss limits will tske into considerstion the time of year and the use of ectemal doors
and isolations within the venue. The vernue will operate with a desigristed oubdoor srrokireg ares to minimiss dsruption

from exterral noize. This area will b= coretantly moni tored by staffard feature-maintained receptacles to collect nubbishy!
dgarette butts. Moise will be monitored to minimise ary noise dsborbance.

Sigrage will be displayed atall et points encowrsging patrors to keave quisty and not disturb neighbours &= they do so.
Staff will echao this messsge to departing custormers and will ercoumge patrons back to the upper promenisde and saay
from the seafront

Taxi detais wil b= clearly displyyed to sid sudience jpurney’s home, utilising established parterships with Stresmline
(erabling cards to be offered genenally to sudience members etc), 22 well 3z highlighing other transport links sudh as the
nearby bus stops ard common roubes away. Thes=wil ako be communicated «is el when sending tickst confirmations
to e oourage customers bo consider their onward journey before attending the premises.

Operating schedulss will be responsive to the wider conbext of the premises to the gty and will be adaptable to the
chiangirg operatireg ares. Major esenits wil be considersd, and operating schedules adspbed to ersure the venue rermars &
positive influence on the C1Z and does not sdeersely contribube to tires of high impact on dty sereices,

29




Continmed from previors paga...

A assessert of the wenwes "zone x* resporebilities will be discuss==d and agreed with lifsguarding and Police
represeritatives. This assessrrernt will be under corstant review to enhance and optimise the venues impacton the
irmrmediabe area and ruinimise sdverss impact within the C1Z

The Nightsafe radio system, or similar will be in operation to help with maintsining patrons and the general public's safety
and to inform staff of ary potertial operatiorsl issues that may ermerge from time to time.
=] The protection of chidren from hamn

Indreichual shows will be &g e-rated and access ooninolled acoordingly by Box Offics and Fromt of House staff.
Bdvei oz vl b sowghit from the hild Protection Uinit where approprist= with regards evers.

(hikdrer Unider 16 are to ke accompanied at all tirmes.

Mo unsccormpanied under 185 to be slowed after Z200 hrs.

The premizes will operate a “Challenge 25* policy whereby ary pemson attempting to buy aloohol who appears to be under
35 will be asked fior photegraphic |l to prove their age. The recommendesd forme of 1D that will be aocepited are peesports,
driwing licenses with a photograph, photographic military 10 or proof of age cards bearing the PASS mark hologram. The
list of approwed formes of D may be armen ded or revised with the prior written sgresmentof Sussex Police and the Licensing
Huthority without the nesd to amend the liceree or conditions attaching to it

Suitable ard sufficient signage sdwertising the “Challengs 28 paolicy will be displayed in promirent locstions in the
premises.

The Premises Licens= Holder shall ersure that all staff members engaged or to be engaged, in selling alcobol atte
premizes shall receiee the following induction traming. This traiming wil tske place prior tothe s=ling of such products

+ Thee lwarful selirg of age restricted products
- Refusing the sale of alcobwol to s person whois drunk

A1 mge-restnicted sales training undertaken by staff members shall be fully do cumerted and recorded. All training records
shall be made aesilable to Sussex Police and Brighton & Hoee Trading Standards Sersios upon reguest

Staff will be aware of the risks of procy sales and use best practice to help deter offerses.

30




APPENDIX C

THE HLECTRIC ARCADE

31




32



APPENDIX D

Representations

Police Station
John Street
Brighton
BN2 OLA

Tel: 101 ext 550828

Email: REDACTED TEXT

30" October 2020

The Licensing Technical Support Officers
Environmental Health, Brighton & Hove City Council
Bartholomew House, Bartholomew Square

Brighton, East Sussex

BNI IJP

MSB CON ENDS 04.11.20 VALID PCD & PPN (A)

Dear Mark Savage- Brookes,

RE: APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE FOR ELECTRIC
ARCADE, DALTON’S BASTION DOWNSTAIRS, MADEIRA DRIVE,
BRIGHTON, EAST SUSSEX, BN2 |EN UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003.

| write on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police for Sussex to raise a representation against
the grant of the above application on the grounds that it will undermine the Licensing
Objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder. We also make reference to the
Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC) Statement of Licensing Policy and Public Health
Framework report for Assessing Alcohol Licensing 2019 edition.

This is a proposed new premises licence application in an area of the City which is subject
to a Special Policy adopted by Brighton & Hove City Council. The premises lies in the
Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) (as defined in the BHCC Statement of Licensing Policy) and
seeks the following hours and licensable activities:

Provision of Plays

Every Day: 09:00 — 00:30
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Provision of Films

Every Day: 09:00 — 00:30

33



Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.
Live Music (Indoors and Outdoors)

Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Recorded Music (Indoors)

Every Day: 09:00 — 00:00
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Provision of Performances of Dance

Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Provision of anything of a similar description to live music, recorded music or performances

of dance.

Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Supply of Alcohol (On the Premises)

Every Day: 09:00 — 23:59
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Opening hours

Every Day: 09:00 — 00:30
Application states under seasonal variations “Until 00:50am every day during the Brighton
Fringe period.

Paragraph 3.1.4 of the Brighton and Hove City Council 2016 Statement of Licensing Policy
states:

“The special policy will only be overridden in exceptional circumstances. The effect of this special
policy is that applications for new premises licenses or club premises certificates within the area, or
variations which are likely to add to the existing Cumulative Impact, will be refused following
relevant representations. This presumption can be rebutted by the applicant if they can show that
their application will have no negative Cumulative Impact”.

34



The licensing decision matrix on page 16/17 of the Council Statement of Licensing Policy
(SoLP) states that no new premises or premises licence variations asking for these licensable
activities and hours will be granted in the CIZ, except in exceptional circumstances.

While the applicant has benefitted from a temporary time limited licence during 2020,
Sussex Police understand that the premises has not be operating to its full potential due to
Government restrictions, guidelines and law, this is also true of other premises within close
proximity of this venue.

Sussex Police are concerned that once all premises return to ‘normal business’ the negative
impact of another fully operational licensed premises in this location, which is already highly
saturated with licensed premises, would increase.

Due to the crime and disorder in the location of this proposed premises Sussex Police
operate a standalone night time operation each weekend and at other various peak times
throughout the year. This involves dedicated Police resources

patrolling the main night economy area to free up our normal night duty officers so they can
manage the rest of the City and the demands it has on our service. Having a visible police
presence in the area, especially during the weekend evenings, goes some way to assist in
reducing criminal incidents occurring, but unfortunately does not stop them in their
entirety. The majority of incidents dealt with have an element of alcohol linked to them.
This is a mix of persons becoming drunk and disorderly, violent and a high number of
incidents involve persons who have become a victim of crime due to their own vulnerability
after consuming alcohol. Staff at venues and from emergency services are far too often also
at the end of a drunk person’s aggression.

Linked with Operation Marble, Sussex Police receive reports from external companies for
example Beach patrol who inform us of weekly incidents that occur on the beach.
Therefore allowing further persons to drink and leave a premises on the sea front could see
an increase in incidents.

Reviewing the Public Health Framework report for Assessing Alcohol Licensing 2019
edition, the East Brighton ward, of which this location is within, is ranked 5th highest out of
21 wards for police recorded alcohol related incidents. Granting an additional licence we
believe could add further to the issues currently experienced within the city and so have a
negative impact on the surrounding area.

Although, the applicant has offered a good number of conditions following pre consulting,
Sussex Police still has concerns of a new premises licence in this location permanently.
There is no proposed conditions for No vertical drinking and no conditions offering
substantial food, therefore allowing this premises to operate as a Pub or even as a
Nightclub, the current licence has conditions such as:-

l. The bar shall only be open for the sale of alcohol when there is a public performance or
event due to take place within 2 hours of the sale of alcohol being available.

2. There will be no admittance to the public to the premises after 21:30 every day unless they
hold a ticket for a performance or event for the same evening.

In order to make the licence, theatre led and not a pub.

35



Sussex Police contend that the carrying on of additional licensable activity and the hours
applied for at these premises will add to the existing negative cumulative effect in an area
already saturated with licensed premises.

Therefore, Sussex Police do not believe that the applicant has offered significant reasoning
as to why this would be an exception or why the SoLP should be departed from.
Sussex Police invite the Licensing Authority to seriously consider refusing this application.

Yours sincerely,
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Licensing & Response Inspector
Local Policing Support Team
Sussex Police

36



Mr M Savage-Brookes Date: 4" November 2020

Licensing Officer :

Licensing Team, BHCC Our Ref:  2020/37384/LICREP/EH
Bartholomew House Phone: REDACTED TEXT
Bartholomew Square Email: REDACTED TEXT
Brighton

BNI IJP

MSB CON ENDS 04.11.20 VALID PCD & PPN (B)

Dear Mr Savage-Brookes,

Licensing Act 2003

RE: Representation in regard to the application for a new Premises Licence (Ref.
2020/03210/LAPREN)

For: The Electric Arcade, Daltons Bastion Downstairs, Madeira Drive, Brighton,
BN2 IEN

| write to make a representation on behalf of the Council’s Licensing Team, in their capacity
as a Responsible Authority, in relation to the above application for a new Premises Licence
for The Electric Arcade, submitted by Otherplace Productions Ltd.

The applicant is applying for the following activities and times:

Performance of Plays

Saturday — Thursday 09:00 — 00:30
Friday 12:00 — 00:30
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

Exhibition of a Film
Every day 09:00 - 00:30
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

Recorded Music
Every day 09:00 — 00:00
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

Live Music, Performance of Dance, Anything similar to LM, RM or PoD
Every day 09:00 — 23:59
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

Alcohol (On sales only)
Every day: 12:00 — 23:59
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

37



Opening Times
Every day 09:00 — 00:30
Until 00:50 every day during the Brighton Fringe period

We have concerns about this application and make a representation on the grounds of the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Prevention of Public Nuisance and that this application
is contrary to our Statement of Licensing Policy (SoLP).

We recognise that the premises was granted a time limited premises licence before a Licensing
Panel on | 1" May 2020 but that licence expired on 31* October 2020. This new application
has no time limit on it and therefore would be a permanent late-night licensed premises within
our Cumulative Impact Area (CIZ) which is defined within the council’s Statement of Licensing
Policy (SoLP).

The council introduced a special policy to address cumulative impact on the 13" March 2008
and following further consultation the cumulative impact zone was expanded in December
201 1. The special policy was set up because the Licensing Authority determined that the
concentration of licensed premises and the subsequent numbers of people drawn into the city
centre is causing exceptional problems of crime and disorder and public nuisance. The special
policy will only be overridden in exceptional circumstances. New applications and variations
to existing licences should normally be refused following relevant representations. This
presumption of refusal can be rebutted by the applicant if they can show that their application
will have no negative cumulative impact on licensing objectives including the prevention of
crime and disorder and public nuisance. The Licensing Authority will always consider the
circumstances of each case and whether there are exceptional circumstances to justify
departing from its special policy in the light of the individual circumstances of the case.

The Council’s SoLP includes a Matrix approach for licensing decisions with provisions for a
terminal hour for all classes of licensed premises in a particular area. The Matrix Model
recognises the diverse operation and different risks presented by different classes of licensed
premises. It provides a vision of what the Licensing Authority would like to see within its
area and gives an indication of likelihood of success or otherwise to investors and local
businesses making applications. Each application is still considered on its individual merit and
there is discretion to depart from the Matrix approach policy in exceptional circumstances.

We acknowledge that the applicant aims to operate an ‘arts led’ premises and has included
positive proposals on how they will manage potential risks within Section |8 of the application
and these mirror and sometimes build on the conditions attached to the previous time-limited
licence. However, we are concerned that two of the conditions that were put on at the
Licensing Panel in May 2020 have not been included in the operating schedule, which gave
robust control measures in ensuring a non-alcohol led premises. These were included as the
panel felt at that time that there were insufficient safeguards in terms of conditions given the
challenging nature of the area of the CIZ.

The two conditions attached were:

38



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority on
11*" May 2020
General:

l. The bar shall only be open for the sale of alcohol when there is a public performance
or event due to take place within 2 hours of the sale of alcohol being available.

2. There will be no admittance to the public to the premises after 21:30 every day
unless they hold a ticket for a performance or event for the same evening.

When considering whether representations should be submitted, the Licensing Team have
regard to the ‘Public Health Framework for assessing Alcohol Licensing’ — January 2019
document. The premises sits within the electoral ward of Queen’s Park, which the document
states under ‘Crime and Disorder data’ is third worst out of 2| wards for all violence against
the person, all injury violence, non-injury assault, sexual offences and police recorded alcohol
related incidents. Within the recorded ‘Health data’, the premises sits in the worst ward for
A&E attendances with a record of alcohol and third worst for alcohol suspected ambulance
call outs.

We make this representation to uphold our Statement of Licensing policy. The Policy is
predicated on too much alcohol being available and applications for new premises licences will
be refused unless the applicant can demonstrate exceptional circumstances. It is up to the
applicant to demonstrate this and satisfy a Licensing Panel that they will not impact negatively
on the CIZ.

We wholly support that each application should be considered on its own merits, but also
recognise that this application is for a permanent extension to a licence previous granted on
a time-limited basis. We are of the opinion that this application should be considered and

determined by a Licensing Sub-Committee Panel.

Yours sincerely,
REDACTED TEXT

REDACTED TEXT
Senior Licensing Officer

Safer Communities

39



Supporting Representations

From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 29 October 2020 14:59

To: EHL Safety REDACTED TEXT

Subject: 1445/3/2020/03210/LAPREN

MSB CON ENDS 04.11.20 VALID PCD (SI)
Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: 1445/3/2020/03210/LAPREN
We are writing in support of the licence application 1445/3/2020/03210/LAPREN

We operate the REDACTED TEXT and REDACTED TEXT and REDACTED
TEXT to the Electric Arcade.

Since the opening of the premises as the Electric Arcade, the area has been policed by the
staff and security on site and we have noticed a reduction in anti-social behaviour and
reduction in drug related activity, the whole area feels like a much safer environment now

that it is open.

We have noticed a good mix of clientele which compliments the various offers East of the
Pier and feel that this is a great fit.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any more information.

Kind regards

REDACTED TEXT

Tel: REDACTED TEXT

40



From: REDACTED TEXT

Sent: 01 November 2020 [7:32

To: REDACTED TEXT

Subject: Licence for the Electric Arcade

MSB CON ENDS 04.11.20 VALID PCD (S2)
REDACTED TEXT

Writing in support of:

Electric Arcade

Daltons Bastion Downstairs
Madeira Drive

Brighton

BN2 IEN

To whom it may concern,

I'm writing this email to extend my praise and support to the Electric Arcade with regards
to their licence application and the positive effect it has had on the general area east of the
palace pier.

Firstly, | would like to state that | work on REDACTED TEXT. | see it in peak summer
and darkest winter and have vast experience with dealing with ASB along the seafront

| would like to highlight the reduction in Unauthorised Encampments and ASB as well as
Drug Dealing and Street Drinking that used to be so prevalent in the area.

| have known from previous observations that the shelter provided by the overhang and lack
of lighting has proved the perfect place for all four.

With regards to ASB street drinking and drug dealing this used to thrive at this location.
Can | please state that although the problem may have increased in the winter months this
was still a major hot spot during peak summer. The reason it was so popular before was
because it was dark and secluded without anyone to witness or report crimes. Now thanks
to the Electric Arcade we have a well lit and safe venue with members of the public to
witness and report crimes alongside trained staff and security who are invested in making
the area safer for the local community.

Then we have numerous unauthorised encampments and rough sleepers that used to
shelter at this spot before it was taken over.

Before the arcade there were people using the area to camp due to its shelter from the
elements and secluded location. Not only was it quite distressing for young families and
tourists coming to Brighton on vacation to witness it was also visible directly from the
palace pier which holds one of the highest public footfalls anywhere in the city. With the
unauthorised encampments came many issues with drug paraphernalia and alcohol being left
littering the area that is a tourist hot spot as well as encouraging individuals not to engage
with outreach teams due to the protection from the elements.

41



Alongside this, with vulnerable people came criminals gangs such as county lines who would
prey on the people usually using this location.

However, with the Electric Arcade now located there and their friendly clientele the area
has gone a complete transformation as it now has a public footfall with local residents and
tourists who are now using this space. It has even had a positive effect of reducing
unauthorised encampments located under the palace pier as vulnerable people seem to find
the area a little too vibrant.

Lighting is an issue along Madeira drive as the council is struggling for funding to replace the
listed street lamps. That part of Madeira drive is darker than it should be and going to the
public toilets located alongside the arcade before involved going into a dark and almost
abandoned area after sunset with often large groups of suspicious people gathering.

Now with the electric arcade located next to the public toilets the suspicious loiterers have
disappeared and you can see the positive impact of them being safer and cleaner as well as
knowing that friendly and trained staff are just around the corner should | encounter
anything suspect. Without the arcade operating in that area the public toilets become
isolated and secluded and one starts to feel extremely uncomfortable and vulnerable.

The arcade is community focused. | have been to their beach cleans that they have been
working on every weekend throughout the summer. They have been partnering with local
charities like Surfers Against Sewage, The Brighton Table Tennis Club and Voices in Exile for
beach cleans and partnering up with Brighton Council and the Volks railway to provide
community driven events. These have had a massive positive effect on bringing locals back to
what is quite often a tourist filled beach. With the local residents coming back to this area |
witnessed passionate locals informing tourists why they should be clearing up their rubbish
from the beach and also informing young families of the dangers of our steep shingle
beaches and our infamous shoredump that can sweep a child into the sea. All of this
contributes to less work for our already overstretched local services and comes directly
from the vision set out from the management and long term plan of the arcade as a
community driven enterprise.

Lastly, | would like to highlight the live shows and events put on by the Electric Arcade, not
only does it add to the vibrance and culture of our city it also changes the clientele who are
using the venue. | would argue that many of the clientele are looking to support artists in
unprecedented hard times. The Electric Arcade is one venue that can do just that. Without
it we risk another mainstream franchise that targets making money when we have the
opportunity to support a project that offers so much more to the City and especially to its
local community.

With Yellowave and the Bison Bar further to the east of Madeira Drive we are seeing what
was a derelict part of the City come back to life. By supporting the Electric Arcade we can
keep this rejuvenation going and make what used to be an extremely dangerous and dissued
area a hub for communities, family and culture. To not support them risks going back on
ourselves and is verging on openly encouraging a site for ASB and criminal gangs to come
back and prey on our vulnerable residents who will once again start using the area.

Yours sincerely,

REDACTED TEXT

42



APPENDIX E

. [~
= ‘_;U—pfmm E PAR

T = =t -

43



44



	Agenda
	33 Electric Arcade Licensing Panel (Licensing Act 2003 Functions)
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E


